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(On the record at 10:09 a.m.) 

THE COURT: Okay. We are now on the 

record. Good morning. This is the time and place for 

the evidentiary hearing scheduled for Kenneth Burris 

versus PECO Energy Company, the Electric Division. 

The Docket Number is F-2025-3055071. My name is 

Alphonso Arnold, III. I am the assigned 

Administrative Law Judge to the case. The date is 

August llth of 2025, and the time currently is 10:09 

a.m. 

The complainant, Mr. Burris, is present 

for today's hearing. He has a witness on the line, 

one witness. Also present, representing PECO, is 

Attorney Khadijah Scott, who has one witness on the 

line as well. 

So, at this time, I am going to explain 

how today's hearing will -- today's hearing procedure. 

So, Mr. Burris, as the complainant, you are the party 

with the burden of proof, which means that you must 

prove by a preponderance of the evidence that PECO is 

responsible or accountable for the problem that you 

described in your complaint. 

That •legal term, 'preponderance of the 

evidence,' just means that your evidence has to be 

more convincing than PECO's evidence. So you will be 
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presenting your evidence first. When you are finished 

presenting your evidence, Respondent will have the 

opportunity tb ask you questions concerning your 

testimony, and the same is true of your witness. 

After your witness testifies, then Attorney Scott will 

have the opportunity• to ask them questions. 

Once we are finished with the 

complainant's case, we will turn over to PECO, who 

will present his witness. And, Mr. Burris, you will 

have the opportunity to ask questions of that witness 

concerning their testimony. Does anyone have any 

questions at this time? 

MR. BURRIS: No, Your Honor. 

MS. SCOTT: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Attorney Scott, are you on? 

It just sounded like Attorney Scott just left the 

call, almost certainly by mistake, so. 

MS. MILBURN: Your Honor, this is 

Ramona Milburn, the witness for PECO. Ms. Scott was 

dropped accidentally. She's dialing back in now. 

THE COURT: Okay, thank you, 

Ms. Milburn. We'll wait for her to call back in. 

MS. SCOTT: I apologize, Your Honor. I 

was disconnected. 

THE COURT: Yes, that's okay, Attorney 
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Scott. Okay,.Mr. Burris, let me swear you in. Do you 

swear or affirm that the testimony that you're about 

to give will be the entire truth? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. Yes, Your Honor, I 

do -- I affirm, yes. 

THE COURT: A11 right. So you can get 

started and explain your complaint. 

COMPLAINANT'S STATEMENT 

MR.. BURRIS: A11 right. This is 

Kenneth Burris, and I moved into the residence on 

03/31/2025 of this year from my prior residence of 

1817 Grange Street, for.the past 20 years. And -I 

called to get service turned on in my name, in which 

the owner of -- the owner of the residence was my 

son's mother. She was leaving -- she was moving, and 

I was moving in. And me and my son had the same name, 

Your Honor. So I believe that's where -- I know 

that's where they got the mistake from. Because of 

the•information PECO was saying, that I benefited from 

benefits for the last, I believe they said four years. 

First, it was -- so it was different 

numbers they told me. First they told me from 2013 to 

current. Then they switched it to say for the last 

four years, which made me owe $9,000, they were 

telling me. And I'm telling them that I never lived 
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there. 

And so I provided them with my voters 

registration information, which had the address, you 

know, from my prior residence, 1817 Grange Street. I 

provided them -- I had just got a new ID, and I had 

got that ID when I went to PECO. I got -- actually, I 

got the ID maybe like April 2nd, maybe, possibly; I 

could check with my ID. I got the new ID.on April 

2nd, and when I went to take that to PECO, the 

receptionist was telling me there, how did you get the 

ID if you didn't have any other -- I said, you can use 

a lease, and that's what I used. I used my current 

lease with the new address to get my ID. 

And then, furthermore, when I noticed 

they said that my son's mother, she put my name on the 

financial statements. And when I looked at the 

financial statements, the Social Security number that 

they had on there for me was not my Social Security 

number. They had a number that ends in 0616, which is 

•not my Social Security number. So I don't know how 

they could use that information, and it's -- because 

that's not even me. If you•can look at the financial 

statement that was made that PECO used for the 

financial statement, it said 0616, which •is not my 

Social Security number, Your Honor. 
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So I don't understand how -- so that's 

another -- I believe -- I know me and my son have the 

same name, so that's -- that -- that's -- that's 

pretty much the basis of my argument. 

And then I've also been -- that's 

the -- that's what I have in black and white or 

whatever, Your Honor. But I've been, you know, I've 

been -- I'm a recovering opiate addict, so this has 

really been stressful. Thank God I haven't relapsed 

with the harassment I've been getting from the new 

neighbors around here, because I've been using the 

.generator since then to keep electric, so I have to 

have power. 

I've been getting harassed by the 

neighbors, calling the police on me, lying to the 

police and calling PECO as well, lying to them, 

telling them that I'm squatting, that I'm in there 

squatting or whatever, and that no one's supposed to 

be in there, all because of PECO, and their 

negligence. So I had -- but I had to have power. At 

the same time, it's causing me anxiety. It's a 

dangerous situation.with the neighbors and the 

generators. 

Yeah, and I had to store gas cans on 

the side of the property, which is not -- which is•  not 
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good and safe. So -- and -- and -- and -- •and, like I 

said, you know, it's -- it's very, very difficult.with 

my recovery, but I'm staying strong and, you know, I'm 

hoping we can resolve this today. That's pretty much 

what I have as far as my -- my black and white. 

And I do have my aunt, Ms. Willistine 

Jackson. She's on the line to confirm that I've.lived 

with her for the past 20 years. So that's pretty much 

all I had to say, Your Honor. Thank you. Thanks for 

allowing me to speak. 

THE COURT: A11 right. Thank you. 

Mr. Burris, let me ask you a couple of questions. Can 

you provide your current -- or, excuse me -- your 

previous address is 1817 Grange Street? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And your testimony was that 

you• lived there for 20 years? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. So do you know what 

date you moved out of that address, according to •you? 

MR. BURRIS: March -- like March 30th 

of this year, 2025. 

THE COURT: And after you moved out of 

that address, you attempted• to get service in your 

name at what address? 
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MR. BURRIS: 312 West Logan Street, 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19144, as of April lst. I 

believe I applied for it on March 31st. 

THE COURT: And you said the owner of 

this residence was your son's•  mother. What is that 

woman's name? 

MR. BURRIS: Tiffani Gunner. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. BURRIS: T-I -- T-I-F-F-A-N-I, 

Gunner, G as in Goat, U-N-N-E-R. 

THE COURT: Oka}i. 

MR. BURRIS: She's the owner. She's 

the landlord. 

THE COURT: Okay. I want to -- you 

submitted four exhibits in advance of today's hearing. 

I just want to go to those. And if you want to dive 

into any of those exhibits, you can. But, so the 

first exhibit -- and I'm going to label this exhibit 

as.Burris• Exhibit One. And this appears to be a State 

Identification License. So that is the document I --

I'm referring to with Burris Exhibit One, the State 

Identification License. Ls there anything that you'd 

like to go over or state concerning this document? 

(Burris Exhibit No. 1 is marked.) 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, it actually has the, 
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the day, the years, I believe that they were -- well, 

originally that they were saying that I was -- I was 

accountable for since 2013. They gave me so many 

different stories, but, as you can see, that address 

is 1B17 Grange Street. The address is on that ID, but 

even though it was expired -- it had expired in 

2020 -- I do want to acknowledge that in spite of 

2020, I was actually just being late. I hadn't gotten 

another ID, Your Honor, until this year when it was 

time -- well, you know, when I needed it for PECO, 

which I should have been gotten one, but -- and, and I 

didn't have to get that address. I didn't•  have to get 

it. I didn't have to get 312 West Logan Street 

address on there, but I did because that's where my 

lease was at. That's what my lease -- and if you can 

look on file the leases, or you can use that, you can 

receive identification. You can.use a lease to get 

identification, and that's why I didn't have any•mail 

coining to that address, nothing. And I had just moved 

in and I wouldn't -- I was able.to go get my ID with 

the lease that I used. 

But that -- my identification, it says 

1817 Grange Street, so that's the ID that I have. 

That's -- that's -- that's what I presented to you, 

yes. So that's why I want -- I can elaborate on •that 
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-- with that. That's why I presented that, to show 

the address that I was at. 

THE COURT: Okay. And the ID -- the 

identification card says it was issued April the 12th, 

2016, and it expired April the 30th of 2020. 

MR. BURRIS: Twenty, yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. So --

MR. BURRIS: I just got another one. I 

just received another one. Let me -- actually, I can 

look at it right now and tell you exactly what date it 

was when I acquired the new ID. 

THE COURT: The new ID, I don't have 

submitted as an exhibit. by you. 

MR. BURRIS: Right, right. .I just -- I 

just received that. They -- PECO might have it. I'm 

not sure, because I gave it to them as well. 

MS. SCOTT: I do not, Your Honor. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay. 

THE COURT: Okay. Let's stick to the 

exhibits that you submitted. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay. 

THE COURT: So let's go to the second 

document that you submitted. This is Burris Exhibit 

Two. And this appears to be a Residential Lease 

Agreement. So that is the document that I am 
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referring to and identifying as Burris Exhibit Two. 

•What would you like to address concerning this 

•exhibit, Mr. Burris? 

(Burris Exhibit No. 2 is marked.) 

MR. BURRIS: Just the date. This year 

is when I, you know, signed April lst of this year, 

2025. The date -- but the date -- let me see, let me 

look, let me pull. Can I pull you up, sir? 

THE COURT: Yes,. go ahead. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, yes, it was -- it was 

signed on the 28th, but it started April lst of 2025. 

Started on the lst of April -- April lst. The 

agreement began on April lst, 2025, and it was signed 

March 2Bth, 2025 by myself and the landlord. This is 

the lease that I -- that we -- this is the agreement 

that we both came upon, Your Honor, the lease that my 

landlord gave to me. 

So, I mean, it's pretty much, I really 

don't have too much to speak on this, Your Honor, on 

the lease, because this is my -- •this is the lease 

agreement that I have. Actually, this is my first 

time ever dealing with a lease like this, or anything 

in my name like that. So -- but this is -- this is --

I'm not sure if this is the lease that I have, which 

you have, so I don't need to elaborate on that pretty 
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much anymore. I don't think so, unless there's 

anything else you want me to -- you want me to 

elaborate on: If you have any questions, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay. First, Exhibit Two 

is a residential lease agreement between the landlord, 

Tiffani Gunner, and --

MR. BURRIS: Yes. 

THE COURT: -- tenant Kenneth Burris, 

whereby according to the document, the landlord, 

Ms. Gunner, agreed to lease 312 West Logan Street to 

Mr. Burris for a term beginning April 1st, 2025 and 

ending March 31st, 2026. And as Mr. Burris stated, it 

appears to be signed by Ms. Gunner and Mr. Burris on 

March 28th, 2025. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Okay. A11 right, let's 

move to the third document that you submitted. • Give 

me a second •to -- it's not opening on my end, so give 

me just one moment. Okay. The third document is a 

letter from Ja'nae Williams, a psychiatrist, Penn 

Medicine. This exhibit, I will mark and identify as 

Burris Exhibit Three. 

And Mr. Burris, just to state, this 

transcript can be -- might be read by more individuals 

than who are present here today. So if you don't want 
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don't want people to know your condition --

MR. BURRIS: Yes, that's fine, Your 

Honor. That's the part of my recovery. 

THE COURT: Okay, so -- so I'm just 

giving you that warning. But you can state -- you can 

state right now what you want for• me to know about 

this letter. 

(Burris Exhibit No. 3 is marked.) 

MR. BURRIS: Just what it said, that I 

-- I'm a recovery -- I'm presently still in recovery. 

I've been in recovery for the last 11 months. I've 

been on since Septemb.er 24th last year, 2024. For 15 

years I was doing opiates. I had an opiate addiction, 

a very heavy opiate addiction. And I'm proud to say 

August 24th of this year, I will be 11 -- 11 months' 

clean. And that's -- that's pretty much it, Your 

Honor. 

Like, I just, you know, like epidemic 

that's going on out here in this world, I was a part 

of it,. And I'.m not ashamed to say, you know, it's 

part of my -- so I don't mind speaking on it, you 

know, part of my recovery, part of the process. But 

at the same.time this has been a very bad burden on me 

with dealing with this electric. But I've been strong 
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at the same time, thank God. But I've been strong 

enough to -- to deal with it, with the heat; it's 

being hot in the house. 

And, you know, just like I said with 

the neighbors -- with the neighbors complaining and 

lying to the police, having the cops, and I'm doing 

right. I'm not -- I'm not gonna say I'm trying -- I'm 

doing right -- doing right by myself in my recovery. 

And, you know, it's just -- it's just -- but they say, 

you know, won't -- well what is put on you just makes 

you stronger or whatever. 

So -- and this definitely has been a 

burden when it hadn't even been my fault. And times 

in the past, I would have used for something like 

this. But I haven't, thank God. And I don't plan on 

it. So I mean, but yeah, I had an opiate addiction 

for the past -- I mean, it started from 2009 to 2024,• 

and which I'm currently in -- still fighting. And I'm 

also in the process now of becoming a Certified 

Recovery Specialist myself, as well, to help people 

like -- other people like -- individuals like myself. 

But yes -- but it's been -- it's been.a 

hard task, as you know. You know, it's been a hot 

summer, in summertime, but it's been extremely hot the 

last few weeks and it's -- it's a struggle, Your 
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Honor, that's all. But I could talk about it and I'm 

pleased to say I'm• still fighting, I'm still holdinq 

on, and I'm meeting all my meetings. As you can see, 

I have my psychiatrist. That was s.omething new. I 

didn't know -- but yes, she does help me with my 

opiate addiction. That's what it was, Your Honor, so. 

This is very, very critical for my (Overlapping 

speakers.) -- excuse me, can I finish, please? 

THE COURT: Yes, finish. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay, thank you. No, it's 

just very critical for my, you know, to my recovery 

and me having power and like it's very critical for my 

recovery. So that's all. That's all I have to say.• 

I'm finished on that exhibit, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay, thank you, 

Mr. Burris. And the last pre-submitted exhibit from 

you appears to be a Voter Status Record Card. I will 

mark and identify this exhibit as Burris Exhibit Four. 

So go ahead and explain what you want us to know about 

this exhibit. 

(Burris Exhibit No. 4 is marked.) 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, this is -- it just 

states -- it has my voter's registration and it has 

the address and the district that I voted -- that I 

voted in it has 1817 -- this is the proof of address 
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along with the ID, which was expired. But this was --

this is the most recent Voter's Registration Card that 

I had that was delivered, you know, to the mail by me 

with this address. 

Unfortunately, I don't have plenty of 

mail that comes here, but I found this. And this is 

the proof of, you know, my residence for the times 

that they were saying that I was living at 312 West 

Logan. This is -- this is a proof of address right 

here, Your Honor, for those times -- for that.time. 

THE COURT: So, did you -- did you pull 

this document from www.PAVoterService.pa.gov? 

MR. BURRIS: This particular one? 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. BURRIS: It's not the one that I 

sent to you? Yes, this is the one. Yes, Your Honor. 

This is the one. Yes. This the one I pulled up from 

there. Yes, Your Honor. Because it's the same one 

that's in the mail. It's the same one that's in the 

mail, Your Honor. 

THE COURT.: Okay. Did you --

MR. BURRIS: Yes, I did. 

THE COURT: Do you know when you 

accessed this from this website? 

MR. BURRIS: I just accessed it during 
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this. It was during the -- during this time with 

PECO, Your Honor. It was -- it.was during this time 

with PECO, sometime after March 31st, after I applied 

for the service. 

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank 

you. Mr. Burris, do you have any additional testimony 

at this time? 

MR. BURRIS: Like I said, I don't -- I 

guess, PECO, like they -- I'm saying that they had --

the Social Security number that they had, that was 

totally wrong that they was using. So if my name was 

used -- I mean, well, I know it might have been 

because it's my son's name. But as far as me being an 

individual in the -- in the financial statements 

that's on PECO -- That's on PECO's information that 

they said that my son -- that Ms. Tiffani had wrote up 

or whatever, that's not my Social Security number, 

Your Honor. That's not me. I don't know where 

PECO -- it's clearly not my Social Security number. I 

know the last four -- wNen I looked at the statement 

that they sent me, the last four was 0616, which is 

not my -- my last four of my Social Security number. 

So they had the wrong person, Your Honor. That's the 

last statement I had to make. Thank you for allowing 

me to take the floor. 
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THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, 

Mr. Burris. Attorney Scott, do you have any •questions 

for Mr. Burris? 

MS. SCOTT: Yes, Your Honor. Thank 

you. Good morning, Mr. Burris. How are you? 

MR. BURRIS: Good morning, Ms. Scott. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, let me ask you, when 

did you ever use the address of 312 Logan as your 

mailing address prior to March 2025? 

MR. BURRIS:• I've never used it before, 

Your Honor. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Do you know •why 

public• records would associate you with the address 

all the way back to 2019? 

MR. BURRIS: No, I do not. I was told 

that, but no,• I do not. Like I said, my -- you said 

2019. My •ID clearly states on it, I wasn't living 

there. So if some -- if someone was -- some kind of 

•public record was using that, it wasn't -- I don't --

I didn't do it, Your Honor. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Your ID doesn't 

actually state that you weren't living there. What 

your ID states•  is that in April of 2016, that was your 

address. It does -- it expires four years later, so 

there are times if the city tracks you --
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MR. BURRIS: So 2020 --

MS. SCOTT: Right. So if you get a 

license today at Logan and you move, you're -- how 

would anyone know where you live? It lasts for four 

years. So that doesn't necessarily tell us where you 

live. It tells us where,you lived in April 2016. 

MR. BURRIS: Well, that -- that's --

that's -- that's -- that's the way of finding out 

where I live at. That's where I lived at. And that's 

where -- and I have my voter registration with that 

address as well. 

MS. SCOTT: Right. But if you live. 

somewhere for 20 years, did you have a deed or a lease 

at the property of Grange Avenue? 

MR. BURRIS: It's my -- it's my -- it's 

my -- no, I don't have a deed. I don't have a deed. 

I did, at least maybe 20 years ago, when I first moved. 

in, by word-of-mouth. This is my aunt. She helped 

raise me, so it's the house I was born in -- I was 

born and raised,in, so. 

MS. SCOTT:. Okay, so then you got mail 

there, right? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. Yeah, that's --

that's where that voter registration came from, the 

mail. That was in the mail. 
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MS. SCOTT: Okay, but voter 

registration, when are you saying you registered for 

that voter registration? What year are you saying 

you registered for voter registration? Are you saying 

that's recent or are you saying that's 20 years ago? 

MR. BURRIS: I can't remember when I 

first registered. I haven't registered again since I 

first registered, but I get that same card in the mail 

every few years at that same address, and I go vote 

there. And I go vote there every four years or every 

two years, Your Honor, so. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay, so why do you 

think --

MR. BURRIS: That's the only place I --

I've always been registered there. That's the only 

thing I've been registered at. 

MS. SCOTT: I understand. How do you 

think public records and PECO got information for you 

-- not your son; I'm talking specifically about you--

on this account for Ms. Gunner? How do you think that 

happened? The public records associated you with the 

address, and PECO's information associates you with 

the address. How do you think that happened? 

MR. BURRIS: The information that PECO 

has, that was not me. If you look -- if you look --
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that -- what I was shown with those -- with that --

with what PECO had, those Social Security numbers, 

that was not me. 

MS. SCOTT.: I'm not talking about the 

Social Security number. The Social Security number, 

just to clarify (Overlapping speakers.) --

THE COURT: Hold on. Yeah, let me just 

-- let me just -- yeah, before you continue, 

Mr. Burris, let's just watch and try to not talk over 

one another. So if you could just wait until someone, 

like, stops and pauses before the next person speaks, 

that would be appreciated. But Mr. Burris, you can 

continue. 

MR. BURRIS: You said -- you said 

the -- what PECO had on me, that Social Security 

number, I don't know -- They didn't -- they didn't 

show me anything else. That's the only thing that I 

know of. But you're talking about that PECO has a 

record of -- with me. The public record, I don't know 

what you're talking about as far as the public record. 

But with PECO has -- but you -- what you're telling me 

that PECO presented with my name on it, it's not my 

Social. So that's not -- that -- I don't know who 

that person -- I don't know what •you're talking about. 

MS. SCOTT: Well, I understand that 
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you're saying it's not your Social Security number 

attached to your name. I'm not disputing that one way 

'or the other. What I'm asking you is, how do you 

think your name got on the financial account statement 

of Ms. Gunner? 

MR. BURRIS: What I'm saying is I'm not 

sure if that's my name or not, if that's not my 

Social. 

MS. SCOTT: Well, let me ask you this. 

(Overlapping speakers.) 

MR. BURRIS: Go ahead. 

MS. SCOTT: Is your son's name Burris 

Jr.? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. Yes. 

MS. SCOTT: Did he live with Tiffani 

Gunner? 

MR. BURRIS: You said, did he? 

MS. SCOTT: Yes. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, he did. Yes, he 

does. Yes, he does. 

MS. SCOTT: Well, what I'm saying is 

this. •He doesn't have a Social Security number 

attached to his name on the financial statement 

either. So the Social Security number isn't exactly 

my question. What I'm asking you is, how do you think 
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it got attached to her account? Are you saying she 

did it without your knowledge? Are you saying you 

were a victim of fraud in some way? How do you think 

that you, you and your son, are both attached to this 

address and her financial activity statement? 

MR. BURRIS: And so, in the financial 

activity (Overlapping speakers.) -- go ahead. Are you 

finished? 

MS. SCOTT: I am. 

MR. BURRIS: A11 right. The Financial 

Activity Statement, is that -- do I have a •copy of 

that? 

MS. SCOTT: Yes, you do. You said you 

were looking at •it. It's PECO's Exhibit Three. 

MR. BURRIS: Right, exactly. So that's 

the one that has -- with the Social Security next to 

it -- with the Social Security number next to it. So, 

what I am saying is that's not me. So, if she wrote 

that, if she did that, then she put the wrong Social 

Security number. I don't know. Somebody was doing 

some kind of fraud. (Overlapping speakers.) Excuse 

me, sir. I mean, ma'am. 

MS. SCOTT: Did you ask her? 

MR. BURRIS: I was talking. I asked 

her. She said she couldn't remember. She told me she 
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couldn't remember doing it. And then, when I showed 

it to her, she said -- she looked at it and was like, 

'I don't know. That's not your Social Security 

number.' I don't know. So, the financial statement 

you're talking about has the Social Security number 

attached to it. 

MS. SCOTT: So the information that you 

have to show where you lived prior to 2021, which is 

 
. 

the year that's now at issue, is an expired 

identification and your voter registration. Is that 

accurate2 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Thank you. Your 

Honor, I have no further questions for this witness. 

THE COURT: A11 right, I'll ask you 

again, Mr. Burris, if you have any additional 

testimony at the time. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, I want to look at the 

financial statement. I gotta pull it. If you give me 

a second, please, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Well, yeah, Mr. Burris, you 

have -- you have the opportunity to cross-examine 

people concerning that exhibit. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay. 

THE COURT: Yeah, because they have a 
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witness who will address that.financial statement. 

Okay, but did you have any additional testimony at 

this time? 

MR. BURRIS: No, sir, Your Honor, I 

don't. 

THE COURT: Okay, so let's address, 

then, the admission.of the four exhibits. Attorney 

Scott, do you object to the admission of Burris 

Exhibits 1 through 4 into the record? 

MS. SCOTT: No, Your Honor. Thank you. 

THE COURT: Okay, so Burris Exhibits 

One, Two, Three, and Four are admitted into the record 

in this proceeding. 

(Exhibits Burris Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 are 

admitted.) 

THE COURT: A11 right, so let's move to 

your witness here. Mr. Burris, you indicated that 

your witness is Ms. Jackson. She's your aunt? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, sir. Yes. 

THE COURT: And the subject of her 

testimony is, I guess, to testify with respect to your 

residence prior to April of 2025? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. Yes, sir, Your 

Honor. 

EXAMINATION BY •THE COURT 
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THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Jackson, are you 

on the line? 

MS. JACKSON: Yes, good rnorning. I am 

on the line. 

THE COURT: Okay, good morning, Ms. 

Jackson. Can.you spell your name, please? 

MS. JACKSON: I'm sorry. Can you 

repeat yourself, please? I think my phone broke up a 

little. 

THE COURT: Yes. Can you spell your 

name? 

MS. JACKSON: Oh, sure. First name is 

Willistine, W-I-L-L-I-S-T-I-N-E. Last name is 

Jackson, J-A-C-K-S-O-N. 

THE COURT: Okay. Let me -- let •me 

swear •you in. Do you swear or affirm that the 

testimony that you're•  about to give is the entire 

truth? 

MS. JACKSON: Yes, I do. 

THE COURT: Okay. What is your 

relationship with the complainant, Mr. Burris? 

MS. JACKSON: I'm his aunt. That's my 

nephew. 

THE COURT: Okay. And what is your 

current address? 
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MS. JACKSON: 1817 Grange Street, 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19141. 

THE COURT: Okay. And, Attorney --

excuse me -- Mr. Burris indicated that you can speak 

to where Mr. Burris resided, I guess, according to 

him, for the past 20 years. All right, Ms. Jackson, 

you can go ahead and, you know, testify. What do you 

want us to know? 

MS, JACKSON: Okay, so Mr. Kenneth 

Burris, my nephew, has been residing at 1817 Grange 

Street for, yes, at least the last •20 years. I have 

been residing there myself since 1990. You know, we 

never -- we just had a mutual agreement. You know, I 

let him move in. He, you know, didn't have anywhere 

to go, and that's my nephew; I love him, so I let him 

stay there until March 30th of this year. And that's 

when, you know, he decided to rent the house at 312 

West Logan Street. And that's when he moved out. 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, 

Ms. Jackson. Attorney Scott, do you have any 

questions for Ms. Jackson? 

MS. SCOTT: Just briefly, Your Honor. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINATION BY RESPONDENT 
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MS. SCOTT: Good morning; Ms. Jackson. 

How are you? 

MS. JACKSON: Good morning. I'm doing 

well. How about yourself? 

MS. SCOTT: Good, thank you. Now, are 

you aware if Mr. Burris ever used a mailing address at 

312 Logan? 

MS. JACKSON: No, I am-not aware of him 

using that address. He would -- he gets all his mail, 

you know, at the address he was at, 1817 Grange 

Street. I don't know why he would have gotten mail 

there. A11 his mail came to 1817 Grange Street, 

always. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Do you have any idea 

how Public Record Database would have him associated 

with that address at.312 West Logan Street prior to 

March of 2025? 

MS. JACKSON: No, I -- I have no idea. 

He's been living at 1817 Grange Street. So I'm -- I 

don't -- public records shouldn't have had him at that 

address. 

MS. SCOTT: .Are you aware 

MS. JACKSON: Ma'am, does the public 

record have him at Grange Street at.all? Because they 

definitely should have him at Grange Street. 
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MS. SCOTT: What I can tell you is that 

although I normally can't answer questions, I will say 

that that wasn't the address the search was run, since 

the issue was at 312. 

MS. JACKSON: Okay. 

MS. SCOTT: So I can't say yes or no. 

I'm not• saying it •doesn't have him at Grange Avenue. 

What I'm saying is, it has him as an associated of 312 

West Logan Street. Now, are you aware that the lights 

are disconnected at 312 West Logan Street? 

MS. JACKSON: He did inform me •of that, 

yes. Absolutely, yes. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, is he back with you, 

or is he still at 312 West Logan Street? 

MS. JACKSON: No, he's still been 

staying there at 312 West Logan Street. I can attest 

to; he has been using a generator that's, you know, 

very, very loud. And, you know, he's been telling me 

he's been getting complaints, like, from the neighbors 

and things like that. You know, calling me, you know, 

very upset and stressed out, you know, about the 

situation. But, you know, I'm just telling him to, 

you know, just pray and, you know, hopefully, you 

know, everything will, you know, work itself out. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, it's your testimony 
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that he's been at this property, 312 West Logan 

Street, since, I guess, April lst of this year? 

MS. JACKSON: Yes, absolutely, yes.• 

MS. SCOTT: Do you know if the utility 

service has been paid at.all from that time? 

MS. JACKSON: For 312 West Logan 

Street? 

MS. SCOTT: Yes. 

MS. JACKSON: I -- I'm -- not that I 

know of, if it's been paid. You know, I -- no, no, I 

don't -- I -- I mean, I don't know. I don't live 

there, so, you know, I wouldn't know if it was paid or 

not. I wouldn't know about any bills being paid 

there. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay, thank you, 

Ms. Jackson. I have no further questions, Your Honor, 

for this witness. 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Attorney 

Scott. Ms. Jackson, is there anything else you want 

to say? (Pause.) Ms. Jackson, is there anything else 

you'd like to say? (Pause.) Okay, I don't hear --

MS. JACKSON: I'm sorry. What did you 

say, Your Honor? 

•THE COURT: Yes. I'm asking if -- is 

there anything final that you'd like to say? 
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MS. JACKSON: No. No, that's it. 

Thank you for your time today. 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you for your 

testimony, Ms. Jackson. A11 right, so at this point 

in time, we'11 turn things over to PECO. Attorney 

Scott, you may present•PECO's witness. 

MS. SCOTT: PECO would call Ramona 

Milburn as its witness, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay, Ms. Milburn, let me 

swear you in. Do you swear or affirm that the 

testimony that you're about to give will be the entire 

truth? 

MS. MILBURN: I affirm, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay, Attorney Scott, you 

can proceed. 

MS. SCOTT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

EXAMINATION BY RESPONDENT 

MS. SCOTT: Good morning, Ms. Milburn. 

How are you? 

MS. MILBURN: I'm well, thank you. 

MS. SCOTT: Can you please state, for 

the record, your current employer and business 

address? 

MS. MILBURN: Current employer is 

Exelon PECO Energy, 2301 Market Street, Philadelphia, 
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PA 19101. 

MS. SCOTT: And how long have you been 

employed with PECO? 

MS. MILBURN: 40 years. 

MS. SCOTT: What's your current job 

title? 

MS. MILBURN: Regulatory Assessor. 

MS. SCOTT: Can you give a brief 

description of what a Regulatory Assessor does? 

MS. MILBURN: Regulatory Assessors will 

review cases that come in for the PUC for PECO. And 

we analyze them and make sure that the company is in 

compliance. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. How did you become 

familiar with the formal complaint that brings us here 

today? 

MS. MILBURN: This complaint was 

assigned to me. 

MS. SCOTT: Did you have an opportunity 

to review the account that's associated with the 

complaint? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, I had. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. I want to direct 

your attention to PECO's Exhibits, so can you go to 

PECO's Exhibit One? Just let me know when you have 
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that. 

(PECO Exhibit No. 1 is marked.) 

MS. MILBURN: I have Exhibit One before 

me. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, what• is this 

document? 

MS. MILBURN: This is what they call an 

Activity Statement -- Financial Activity Statement. 

It's for the billing and payment history for the 

property Logan. 

MS. SCOTT: And is that 312 West Logan 

Street? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, •312 West Logan 

Street. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, who is the customer of 

record for PECO at 312 West Logan Street? 

MS. MILBURN: Tiffani Gunner is the 

customer of record. 

MS. SCOTT: And what is the current 

account balance at 312 West Logan Street? 

MS. MILBURN: We're showing $14,134.04 

for the account balance. 

MS. SCOTT: Is the account currently 

active? Is the service on? 

MS. MILBURN: Service is off. 
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MS. SCOTT: And why is the service off? 

MS. MILBURN: We have non-payment. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Do you know 

approximately when the service was cut out for 

non-payment? 

MS. MILBURN: Just one moment. Let me 

double-check the date. I have March 31st, 2025. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, at some point 

in time, are you aware of Mr. Burris contacting PECO 

regarding this account? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes. 

MS. SCOTT: And what, if anything, do 

you know about that? 

MS. MILBURN: Mr. Burris contacted PECO 

to have the service placed into his name at this 

address. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, when a.customer 

contacts PECO to have service placed into their name, 

what's that process look like? Why wasn't it placed 

into his name? 

MS. MILBURN: Because of history with 

people changing account balances over to avoid paying 

the bill. When there is a large balance on an account 

and a new person is applying, PECO will confirm by 

checking to see if they have any affiliation with the 
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previous Customer of Record. If there is no 

affiliation, we start a new account. If there is an 

affiliation, then a determination is made as to what 

amount of the bill that they would be responsible for, 

and then we would go forward: If they accept 

responsibility, if they need to pay the full amount 

that they're responsible for, if they need to make 

arrangements on the bill before the service, is started 

with the new account. 

MS.. SCOTT: Okay. In this particular 

case, how, if at all, was Mr. Burris associated, or 

not associated, with 312 West Logan Street, when a 

research was conducted? 

MS. MILBURN: The research was 

conducted and public records returned that he was 

associated with the account. 

MS. SCOTT: I want to direct your 

attention to PECO's Exhibit Two. Just let me know 

when you have that. 

(PECO Exhibit No. 2 •is marked.) 

MS. MILBURN: I have Exhibit Two before 

•me. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, what is this 

iriformation? 

MS. MILBURN: This is what •the public 
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records through the program LexisNexis has shown to 

have Senior and Junior associated with the property. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. 

MS. MILBURN: For 312 West Logan. 

MS. SCOTT: Now, I see two different 

images for Exhibit Two, okay? And the first one says 

Kenneth Burris, and then it has Senior as the second 

entry. I just want to look at the first snip for a 

moment. What's the date of birth of the person 

associated with this research? 

MS. MILBURN: March 1&th, 1977. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Were you able to 

confirm or not confirm whether that's the actual birth 

date of Mr. Burris? 

MS. MILBURN: Just one moment. I'm 

checking. Yes, the ID confirmed that that was the 

-birth date. It's the same birth date. The ID that 

Mr. Burris provided to the company. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay, so, and what's the 

address that's associated with Mr. Burris and the 

LexisNexis research? 

MS. MILBURN: 312 West Logan. 

MS. SCOTT: During what time frame? 

• MS. MILBURN: It's reporting September 

2019 through June 2025. 
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MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, with regard to 

the account of Ms. Gunner, when did that account open? 

MS. MILBURN: 2017. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Is PECO holding 

Mr. Burris responsible for the balance dating back to 

September 2019 in order to have service placed in his 

name? 

MS. MILBURN: Just as of 2021. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay, and why is that? If 

the account associates him back to 2019, why is it 

only a four-year look back? 

MS. MILBURN: The company would only 

hold people responsible for the past four years. They 

won't go longer than that. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, were you able 

to correspond Mr. Burris to the address of 312 West 

Logan Street in any other way? 

MS. MILBURN: The financial records 

that we received shows him associated. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. I want to direct 

your attention to PECO's Exhibit Three. Just let me 

know when you have that information. 

(PECO Exhibit No. 3 is marked.) 

MS. MILBURN: I have Exhibit Three 

before me. 
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MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, what is this 

information that says financial statement? 

MS. MILBURN: The financial statement 

will list the peoples that are noted for the property 

address, and it will give detailed information as far 

as what their name is, if they're employed, what the 

status would be, and what the income would be, and 

what their age would be. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. And why is it that 

somebody would even give a financial statement to 

PECO? 

MS. MILBURN: They usually want to 

apply for assistance -- payment arrangements. For 

this one, it was to apply for the PECO Customer 

Assistance Program. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, there are 

multiple persons represented on this financial 

stateinent, but are you able to identify Mr. Burris in 

particular? And, if so, where do you see that? 

MS. MILBURN: Mr. Burris is listed on 

the third person on the financial statement, Senior 

and his age. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, did you hear 

the testimony of Mr. Burris that he may be getting 

mixed up with his son because they share the,same 

a 
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name? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, I did hear that 

testimony. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. And how, if at all, 

can you confirm or deny that he's being misidentified 

as his son? 

MS. MILBURN: Well, because it shows 

Senior and the age 46, and then it shows Junior and 

the age 14. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. So when this 

financial information was taken, is it your testimony 

that it was provided for two separate individuals? 

MS. MILBURN: That is correct.• 

MS.• SCOTT: Let me ask you, are you 

familiar with how financial statement information is 

gathered from a customer? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, I am familiar. 

MS. SCOTT: Are they required to have 

the correct Social Security number for the family 

members, or just household members that are listed in 

the property when they're providing the information? 

MS. MILBURN: We request the Social 

Security number. Sometimes, the person might say they 

don't have it or they're not sure of it, but we 

request it. It's not a requirement. 
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MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, I see for line 

four, where it says Kenneth Burris Jr., it has 0000 as 

the last four of his Social Security number. From 

your experience, does that mean that that's the last 

four digits of his• Social Security number? 

MS. MILBURN: Not necessarily. 

Sometimes they'll, if they're not sure •of it, it could 

be all zeros, all nines. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. When you look at 

this financial statement, do you see the first three 

residents: Royal Williams, Riley, and Kenneth Burris 

Senior, all their Social Security numbers are listed 

as ending in 2222; do you see that on the financial 

statement? 

MS. MILBURN: That is correct. Yes, 

that is listed on the statement. 

MS. SCOTT: And what reason would that 

be? 

MS. MILBURN: That the person providing 

the information wasn't able to give the actual numbers 

for the last four of the Socials. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. And.if they aren't 

able to give the actual four numbers for the Socials, 

what, if anything, would be input into the system? 

MS. MILBURN: The information that they 
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provide is inputted into the system. 

MS. SCOTT: And what if they don't know 

the Social? 

.MS. MILBURN: They have dummy numbers. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, in your 

experience, if someone has a dummy number assigned to 

their Social Security number, does that mean they did 

or did not reside or associated with the property? 

MS. MILBURN: No, it doesn't mean that 

they did or did not reside or associated at the 

property. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Do, you know of any 

way, in your experience, that a customer would be 

associated with an address that they've never lived at 

in public records? 

MS. MILBURN: They could be associated 

if they have mail going there, if they're related 

going there, if they list their address there for 

other things, if they have bills and they list that 

address. There's a number of things that can 

associate a person with an.address. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Did this particular 

customer, Ms. Gunner, receive Customer Assistance 

Program funds from PECO? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes. 
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MS. SCOTT: Okay. I want to direct 

your attention to PECO's Exhibit Four. Just let me 

know when you have that. 

(PECO Exhibit No. 4 is marked.) 

MS. MILBURN: I have four before me. 

MS. SCOTT: And what is this 

information? 

MS. MILBURN: This is the data for the 

Customer Assistance Program. Ms. Gunner was approved, 

and she was enrolled in the program. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, are you aware 

of any other complaints that Mr. Burris made against 

PECO trying to get service into his name at the 

address of 312 West Logan Street? 

MS. MILBURN: Before going to the 

formal, he started off with an inforinal complaint. 

MS. SCOTT:•  Okay. I want to direct. 

your attention to PECO's Exhibit Five. Just let me 

know when you have that. 

(PECO Exhibit No. 5 is marked.) 

MS. MILBURN: I have five in front of 

me. 

MS. SCOTT: What's this information on 

page one of Exhibit Five? 

MS..MILBURN: Page one would list the 
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complainant's name, Kenneth Burris, the address, which 

is the 312 West Logan, and then the nature of their 

complaint. It is noted the reason was that they were 

applying for service at this address. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, how much time 

had passed between PECO disconnecting the service and 

Mr. Burris then contacting PECO wanting service in his 

name? 

MS.. MILBURN: Same day. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. Now, what was the 

date of this particular complaint? 

MS. MILBURN: It was open April 4th. 

MS. SCOTT: A11 right. Now, I want to 

direct.you to the second•  page of Exhibit Five. And 

just let me know when you have that. 

MS. MILBURN: I have the second page. 

MS. SCOTT: What's the Case •ID Number• 

for thi• s particular complaint? 

MS. MILBURN: 4051985. 

MS. SCOTT: And when •was the decision • 

rendered on the complaint? 

MS. MILBURN: April 17th. 

MS. SCOTT: And what ultimately was the 

decision that was. rendered by the Public Utility 

Commission Bureau of Consumer Services? 
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MS. MILBURN: It held that the 

applicant was respdnsible for some or all of the 

outstanding balance on the account. 

MS. SCOTT: Okay. (Overlapping 

speakers.) Go ahead. I'm sorry. 

MS. MILBURN: Oh, I was going to say, 

and since PECO, as we've already stated, would.not 

hold a person responsible for a balance that accrued 

over four years to put the service in their name, the 

total balance, which was $9,835.90, had accrued since 

April lst, 2021. And the PUC stated that they could 

not offer payment arrangements to restore the service 

because of a balance that was owed while the account 

was under CAP. But the case was dismissed. 

MS. SCOTT: Do you know if the 

complainant's voter registration, license, and leasing 

information was provided to the Bureau of Consumer 

Services before they made their decision? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, it was. 

MS. SCOTT: Thank you, Ms. Milburn. I 

have no further questions of this witness, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Milburn. 

Mr. Burris, do you have any questions for the witness 

here? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, Your Honor, I do. 
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Yes, I do. May I proceed, please? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay, thank you. 

EXAMINATION BY COMPLAINANT 

MR. BURRIS: Is it Ms. Milburn -- Ms. 

Milburn; is that your name? 

MS. MILBURN: •Milburn. 

MR. BURRIS: Milburn. Okay, sorry. 

Pardon me if I got it wrong. Now, you stated that the 

service was cut off due to Tiffani's non-payment. I 

have a discrepancy with that. Tiffani, from what I 

was told and what we discussed, is that she called in 

to get it cut off because she was moving and that I 

was moving in. That -- that she had a tenant moving 

in. From what I was told, she.didn't say who, but she 

called in first. She got cut off, because she was 

moving and I was moving in. 

From what I was -- my understanding, 

PECO didn't cut it off. She called them and told them 

to cut it off. And I called the same day. I called 

literally the same day to get service put on in my 

name, but on the same day that she called to get it 

cut off -- or she called me maybe the 25th or the 26th 

to get it cut off. And I had called -- and I called 

them maybe a couple days later or whatever. I called 
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to get service turned on before the service was even 

cut off. The service got cut off, I believe; on April 

lst, but she called to get it cut off prior to that. 

And I was going -- and so that's a 

discrepancy as far as they said. They might have owed 

the bill, but that's not what -- she •called to get the 

service cut off. It wasn't because of the bill. She 

called, and they cut it off because she told me that 

she had a tenant moving in. So that's -- that's the 

discrepancy that I have, that you said that PECO cut 

it off because -- because of, you know, because of 

non-payment of a bill. Are you aware of that? Is 

that what you said, right, that PECO cut it off 

because of non-payment of a bill? Is that what you 

said,.Ms. Milburn? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, I did state that. 

They also.had issued a 10-day termination notice for 

the bill not being paid. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay, but -- but -- but 

she -- but you are aware that she called in to get it 

cut off on a certain day because she had a tenant 

moving in. Are y'all aware -- are you aware of that? 

MS. MILBURN: We're aware that she also 

requested to have the service stopped in her name. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay, which was before --
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which was the day that she told them to not -- so PECO 

didn't do it. She requested -- so the ten days wasn't 

even up yet from what you're telling me. She could 

have had -- she could have kept it on for however many 

more days it was before they cut it off. So that 

wasn't the actual cut-off date that PECO gave her. 

Okay. All right. And exhibit, I 

believe this is Exhibit Three. Let me pull it up. I 

have another question. Yes, Exhibit Three. When you 

were saying that, you know, you don't -- it's not 

necessary to have the Social Security number on there 

or someone putting them there. What about the gender? 

If it said female for everything and you have -- and 

you said Junior. Why is it Junior if they're all 

females. Are •you -- were you unaware of that? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes. And that could be 

human error, where they put down an F instead of an M. 

MR. BURRIS: For all -- for all five 

people, human error. So for Senior, it says a female. 

Junior, it says a female. Clearly, Junior and Senior 

are clearly males. So, I mean, I don't know. To me, 

Junior and Senior, they're clearly male. You all 

didn't mention about being a human error. Tiffani 

knows who was a male and female. I'm pretty sure she 

knows who her son is and who her son's father is. So 
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she would have put male for them, so it would have 

been human error on people's, behalf, if I'm not 

mistaken. 

So that's all I had --.that's all I had 

to add on that, and I'm done with the questions, Your 

Honor. Thank you, Ms. Milburn. Thank you, Your 

Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, 

Mr. Burris. 

EXAMINATION BY THE COURT 

THE COURT: Give me -- okay, Ms. 

Milburn, excuse me if you answered this already, but 

what is the amount that PECO is looking for, for Mr. 

Burris to pay in order to get this account in his 

name? 

MS. MILBURN: We offered $9,835. 

THE COURT: Is that on -- is that found 

on -- can that be found on Exhibit One? 

MS. MILBURN: It's on the Exhibit with 

the decision, which I believe is Exhibit Five. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MS. MILBURN: The second page. 

THE COURT: Okay. It also says -- so 

this 9,835, that was the balance that Ms. Gunner 

accrued starting from April lst, 2021. Is that 
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correct? 

MS. MILBURN: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: And what was the end date? 

MS. MILBURN: March 31st, 2025. 

THE COURT: Okay. With respect to 

Exhibit Two, do you know the details surrounding how 

this search that was performed on Lexis? 

MS. MILBURN: When you say the details, 

like, how do you put it into the system? I don't do 

the search myself, but our department that handles the 

application, they would have placed the information 

regarding the name, the social -- the actual social 

to do a tracer to see if anything came up for the 

address. They put the address in. They put the name 

in the social to see if it has an affiliation. 

THE COURT: Do you know the source of 

this information at all, or? 

MS. MILBURN: For NexisLexis? 

THE COURT: Well, you -- well, 

specifically, you just said --

MS. MILBURN: Oh, you mean the source 

of information that they use it. I'm sorry, I'm 

getting confused what you're asking me. It's a public 

database. It pulls all forms of information. And if 

you're saying, like, the source, Mr. Burris gave us 
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his name, his social, his date of birth. 

THE COURT: So, when the search comes 

back that, I guess, Kenneth D. Burris Sr. is 

associated with Logan Street -- I know you went over 

this briefly -- what type of information would 

associate with him with this property? 

MS. MILBURN: It doesn't give me the 

exact details, but it could be gun registration, 

voters registration. It could be IRS information. 

There's driver's license, state ID. 

THE COURT: Okay. And with respect to 

Exhibit Three -- and again, it's my -- just to 

clarify, this financial statement, that's information 

that Ms..Gunner provided to PECO.in order to -- in the 

process of her reuesting to be signed up for customer 

assistance? 

MS. MILBURN: Correct. 

THE COURT: Okay. Okay, Ms. -- or, 

excuse me, Attorney Scott, do you have any redirect 

for the witness? 

MS. SCOTT: No, Your Honor. Thank you. 

THE COURT: And does that conclude 

PECO's evidence? 

MS. SCOTT: Yes, PECO.would ask that 

Exhibits One through Five •be admitted into evidence, 
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Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Mr. Burris, do you have any 

objection to the admission of those exhibits into the 

record?. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, sir. You just asked, 

I believe it was Ms. Milburn, about their reference in 

there and what they get -- where the sources come 

from. .And the information that she told you was 

voters registration, gun .registration, like, I 

presented the voter registration, but I cannot 

register a gun because, unfortunately, I am a 

convicted felon, so it couldn't have been through 

that. 

(Overlapping speakers.) 

THE COURT: Go ahead. 

MR. BURRIS: Like I was saying about 

Exhibit Three, as far as the genders, but that's a11.I 

have to say. 

THE COURT: Okay. PECO Exhibits One 

through Five are admitted into the record in this 

proceedings. 

(PECO Exhibit Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, are 

admitted.) 

MR. BURRIS: I'd ask if my stuff can be 

admitted to the record as well, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: Yes, I already admitted 

your four exhibits. 

MR. BURRIS: Thank you, sir. 

THE COURT: Give me -- give me.just one 

moment. A11 right. Let me -- let me take just a 

couple, one or two additional questions for 

Mr. Burris. I'm just taking additional testimony 

here, Mr. Burris, and you're still sworn in; you're 

still under oath? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. 

THE COURT: With respect to the address 

at 312 Logan Street, before you -- before April 2025, 

have you spent any significant period of time residing 

there? 

MR. BURRIS: No, sir. No, Your Honor, 

I did not. None at all. I'd go see my son and that 

would be it. 

THE COURT: Okay. So your son lives 

there. Did your son live there full time? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, he did. Yes, he did. 

They don't -- they no longer live there. 

THE COURT: Okay. Okay, that's it. 

Attorney Scott, any questions for the witness, based 

on those two questions? 

MS. SCOTT: No, thank you. 
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THE COURT'S FINAL STATEMENT 

THE COURT: A11 right, so we will, at 

this time, move to conclude today's hearing. Jus;t a 

couple of things before we do that. Ms.. Grzywaczl~, can 

you provide the email address for the submission of 

the admitted exhibits? 

COURT REPORTER: Yes, they can be sent 

to dependable.lea@gmail.com. 

THE COURT: Okay, so I'll just repeat: 

dependable.lea@gmail.com. 

COURT REPORTER: Correct. 

THE COURT: Okay. And Lea is L-E-A? 

COURT REPORTER: Correct. 

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. So, Attorney 

Scott, please submit your exhibits to that email, and 

I will submit the complainant's exhibits to that email 

that were admitted. 

A11 right, so following today's 

hearing, I will await the transcript of today's 

hearing. Once I receive that, the record will be 

closed. Then I will have 90 days to write my initial 

decision: 

In my initial decision, I would either 

grant or deny the complaint. If any party disagrees 

with my decision, they may submit exceptions, and'then 
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the other party may submit reply exceptions. A 

document that explains the exception and reply 

exception process will be included alongside my 

initial decision. Does anyone have any questions at 

this point in time? 

MR. BURRIS: Yes, Your Honor, I do;. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. BURRIS: Yes. Did you -- you 1said 

we wait 90 days, you say? It could •be up to 90 days 

for your decision, Your Honor, or before a decision to 

be made? 

THE COURT: Ninety days after I re,ceive 

the transcript, which usually is submitted within 21 

days. 

MR. BURRIS: Okay, so -- wow. So that, 

is that business days, Your Honor, or just --

THE•  COURT: No, that's --

MR. BURRIS: Ninety days, okay. And 

during this time, I request, if it's possible, if1 I 

can have service until then, until a decision is made. 

Because I've been out service now. I •have to wait 

another -- possibly another three more months. And I 

know I, you know, I -- I can't keep standing there. I 

don't want to -- I don't want to die. It's dangerous 

living out here with the generator. I just ask, you 
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know, if it's possible if I can have service until 

then, until a decision is made? 

THE COURT: •Yeah, well, unfortunately, 

I -- I can't do anything in that regard. If I were to 

-- if I were to,rule in your -- rule in your favo r, 

then things can move in the direction of getting 

service for you, I'm pretty sure. But, yeah, I can't 

do anything for you at this point in time •until I 

issue my decision. 

And I would also •note that, following 

my issuance of my decision, the Commission would'then 

pretty much have to approve my decision. They may 

disapprove or approve of my decision. And then, of 

course, if any exceptions are filed, they would have 

to review the exceptions. So -- so it would be longer 

than even that, even after my decision is issued, in 

order for my decision to become final. 

MR. BURRIS: •A11 right. Okay. A11 

right, well -- wow. Okay. Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Yeah. I don't want to get 

into your business, but maybe moving into your aunt 

would be -- back into your aunt's home would be a 

possibility. But, in any event, do you have any 

additional questions? 

MR. BURRIS: No, sir, Your Honor, I 
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don't. 

THE COURT: A11 right. So, at this 

point in time, the hearing is adjourned and we are off 

the record. 

(Off the record at 11:25 a.m.) 
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I hereby certify, as the stenographic.reporter, 

that the foregoing proceedings were taken 

stenographically by me via remote teleconference, and 

thereafter reduced to typewriting by me or under my 

direction; and that this transcript is a true and 

accurate record to the best of mv abilitv 

L ~ 

Lea Grzywacz 
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